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half: it has, however, been done, exclusive of
stoppages, in the short space of three hours and a
half, and wagers are now pending that it will yet
be achieved in less than half that time. To some
persons, who have never seen alocomotive engine,
their present speed will probably appear a little
fearful and startling; but those who have once
been on the line, find all such apprehensions
speedily subside, and, from the extreme easiness
of the motion, they will undoubtedly give this
mode of travelling the preference to that of any
other. There is scarcely any portion of the Road
that is not interesting, either from its beauty or
from its being the seat of arts and manufacture,
or the centre of rich mineral districts ; but as the
mode of travelling is too rapid to allow the tra-
veller to get more than a momentary glance, we
propose to obviate this as far as we can in the
present work, by giving a brief history of the
country and towns, either on, or in the immediate
vicinity of, the line. We cannot, perhaps, do
better than conduct the traveller from the com-
mencement of the Company’s temporary Station,
at Vauxhall, Birmingham, on to the first Station
at Perry Bar, and from thence to all the others
at which the Trains will arrive in regular succes-
sion ; first, however, inserting the List of Fares,
Hours of Departure and Arrival, together with
the Regulations, &c., as published by the Grand
Junction Railway Company. The description of
BirMiNGHAM, the Mistress of the Arts, and Toy-
Shop of Europe, we defer giving till we have con-
ducted the traveller through the whole of theline.






Fares, from Birmingham to Liverpool or Manchester,

First Class Coach, Six inside, whether in First £, s.
Class or in Mixed Trains ..... teeenesnans
Mail Coach, Four inside cevecvveeeessenoans
Bed Carriage, in Mail Coach teesesssesens s
Second ClassCoach .....:..00.e
Children under Ten Yeais of Age, Half Pnce.
Gentlemen’s Carriages, four wheels ..........
Ditto - two whee!S.eoevennnas
Passengers, if belonging to, and riding in Gentle-
men’s Carriages, €8ch co.ovevevie-conone
Servants, ditto ditto each
Grooms, in Charge of Horses, each .
One Horse .vcovvenrenass
Two Horses ..
Three Horses....

08 cesvses cosssrsrnsvesene .t
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The following, until further notice, will be the hours of departure.

From Arrival at

.Birmingkam. Liverpool and Manchester,

H, M. H. M.
lst Class 7 0 o'Clock A. M, 11 30 o'Clock A. M.
Mixed 830 , AM, 14 , P.M
IstClass 1130 ,, A.M, 40 , PM
lstClass 2,30 ,, P.M, 70 , P M
Mixed 43 , PM 945 ,, P. M.
1stClass 7 0 » P.M 113 , P.M

From Arrival at
Liverpool and Manchester, Birmingham.

H. M. : H. M.
IstClass 630 , A M nms , AM
Mixed 83 , AM 2 0., PM
lstClass 11 30 ,, A.M, 4 5 , PM
IstClass 230 ,, P.M 7565 , P. M.
Mixed 43 , PM 100 , PM
I1stClass 630 , P.M 1 5 ,; P.M.

ON Sunpays, the Four First Class Trains only, with the
addition of Second Class Coaches, will start at the same
hoursas on the week days, but will not take up and set down
Passengers at any, but at the six principal stopping places.






From Liverpool or
Manchester to Birmingham.

BTATIONS.

LIVERPOOL .......
MANCHESTER .....
NEWTON JUNCTION

WARRINGTON .....

ACTON cosoessnee

HARTFORD .ccvesss

COPPENHALL ...
CREWE....coonteee
MADEI‘EY secese
WHITMORE........
NORTON BRIDGE ..

JAMES’S BRIDGE
BESCOT BRIDGE ...

PERRY BARR ......
IBIRMINGHAM ....

MOORE .coessenesl.
PRESTON BROOK «efseeefe

BRIDGEFORD .« oeesf.
STAFFORD ..o0v0ef:
PENKRIDGE ~sveeef.
SPREAD EAGLE ....|....
FOUR ASHES vovansfee..]
WOLVERHAMPTON [
WILLENHALL eooofeeafond

WINSFORD sessseleans
MINSHULL VERNON {...

NEWTON ROAD co.ufeossfen

Gentlemen’s
|Carriages

Jitai,
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The Mixed Trains will also take up and set duwn Pas-
sengers fo or from any part of the Grand Junction Railway,
at all the usual Stopping Places on the Liverpool and
Manchester Railway.—Anallowance is included in the above
Table of five minutes for all the Trains at the principal
Stations, and of three minutes for the Mizred Trains, at the
intermediate stopping places,—No Fare will be less than
One Shilling by tge principal Trains,—The Fares between
the intermediate Stopping Places will be at the rate of about
23d. per mile for 1st, and 1jd. for 2nd Class Passengers,
Tables of which will be kept at each of the Stations.

A WorveraamrroN TraIN will start daily at the fol-
lowing hours:—( 4s soon as the Buildings which are now in
a state of forwardness are ready ) from Wolverhampton Sta-
tion to Birmingham at Eight o’Clock in the Morning, and
from Birmingham to Wolverhanmpton at Seven o'Clock in
the Evening.

Fares from Wolverhampton Station to Birmingham.
Close Carriage. Open.
s. s
To Willenhall ......00,0000000mases, |1
— James’s Bridge ....ccvieines 100 1
— Bescot Bridge s oo veeeeececiaaria. 1
— NewtonRoad...e.coveaiivnniass 2
— Perry Bar s.evceccniniianiiiena. 2
~— BIRMINGHAM ...cvveirieesransnne
Fares from Birmingham to Wolverhampton Station.,
Close Carriage, Open.
s
ToPerry Bar ....coccvvveneccreeen. 1
— NewtonRoad ....,cce000iieensees 1
— Bescot Bridge .....cvieavenroess 2
— James’s Bridge ...... 0000000000
— Willenhall sov0ee viieeenennennens 2
— WOLVERHAMPTON STATION ........ 2

coommon
-t el QOO
cocvoal

.

NOOOTORN
Pt ok ot bt O P
occocwval

A WarriNneroN TraIN will start daily from Warrington
to Liverpool and Manchester at Eight o’Clock in the
Morning,
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REGULATIONS.

TiMe oF DEPARTURE.—Tke doors of the Booking Office
will be closed precisely at the time appointed for starting ;
after which no Passenger can be admitted.

Booring.—There will be no Booking Places, except at
the Company’s Offices at the respective Stations. KEaeh
Booking Ticket for the First Class Trains is numbered to
correspond with the seat taken. The places by the Mixed
Trains are not numbered.

Luceaar.—Each Passenger's Luggage will be placed on
the roof of the Coach in which he has taken his place; car-
pet bags and small luggage may be placed underneath the
seat opposite to that which the owner occupies. No charge
for bona fide luggage belonging to the passenger under
1001bs. weight; above that weight a charge will be made at
the rate of 1d. per 1b. for the whole distance. The attention
of travellers isrequested to the legal notice exhibited at the
different stations, respecting the limitation of the Company’s
liabilities to the loss or damage of luggage.

GenTLEMEN’S CARRIAGES AND Horses,—Gentlemen’s
Carriages and Horses must be at the Stations at least a
quarter of an hour before the time of departure. A supply
of trucks will be kept at all the principal Stations on the
line; but, to prevent disappointment, it is recommended
that previous notice should be given, when practicable, at
the Station where they may be required. No charge for
landing or embarking Carriages or Horses on any part of
the line.

Roap Sramions.~—Passengersintending to join the Trains
at any of the stopping-places, are desired to be in good
time, as the Train will leave each Station as soon as ready,
without reference to the time stated in the above table, the
main object being to perform the whole journey as expe-
ditiously as possible. Passengers will be booked only
conditionally, upon there being room on the arrival of the
Trains; and they will have a preference of seats in the
order in which they are booked.—All persons are request-
ed to get into and alight from the Coaches invan'ab.ly on the
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left side, as the only certain means of preventing accidents
from Trains passing in an opposite direction.

Conpucrors, Guarps, AND PorTers.—Every Train is
- provided with Guards, and a Conductor, who is responsible
forthe order and regu'arity of the journey. The Company’s
Porters will load and unload the luggage, and put it into or
upon any omnibus or other carriage at any of the Stations.
No fees or gratuities allowed to Conductors, Guards, Por-
ters, or other persons in the Company’s service.

SmokiNG, SELLING OF Liquors, &c.—No smoking will
be allowed in any of the Coaches, even with consent of the
passengers, No person will be allowed to sell liquors or
eatables of any kind upon the line. The Company earnest-
ly hope that the Public will co-operate with them in en-
forcing this regulation, as it will be the means of removing
a cause of delay, and greatly diminish the chance of
accident.

Parcews,—The charge for Parcels, including Booking
and Delivery, will be from 1s. 6d. upwards, according to
size and weight.

TrAVELLING TO LoNDON, &c.—Arrangements with Coach
Proprietors are made, by which Passengers may secure
places in Liverpool and Manchester for London and other
parts South of Birmingham by Coaches, which await the
arrival of the Trains at Birmingham,

TrmporAry StaTioN, VAUXHALL.

After leaving Vauxhall, the traveller proceeds
through the Parish of Aston, passing Aston Hall,
the seat of James Watt, Esq.  On the other side
of the road is the tall Chimney of the Birming-
ham Water-Works’ Engines for supplying the
town with water. Crossing the town, he arrives
at the Parish of Handsworth, when he enters the
County of Stafford, and will soon after awdve %
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town, having many handsome buildings both in
the town and its environs. ‘It is divided into two
parts, called respectively the Borough and Foreign.
The Reform Bill conferred on this town the pri-
vilege of returning one member to Parliament.
Formerly, Walsall used to be particularly celebra-
ted for the manufacture of buckles, hut, since they
have ceased to be worn so much, the manufactu-
rers have turned their attention to the making of
other goods in the different branches of hardware,
and, excepting in times like the present, generally
command, from the quality and price, a steady
and- constant sale. =~ About a mile from the
town, on the Wolverhampton road, is a strong
chalybeate water called * Alum Well,” and there
are various mines of coal, ironstone, and limestone,
the latter is celebrated as being susceptible of a
polish nearly equal to marble.

WEDNESBURY is a market town, lying about
one mile west of the line, situate near the source
of the Tame, in a district abounding in excellent
mines of coal and iron stone. It was denominated
by the Saxons Weadesbury, and is, at the present
day, commonly called Wedgebury. It is a place
of great antiquity, and, in thetime of the Mercians,
was distinguished by a noble castle, and was for-
tified against the Danes by Ethelfrida, daughter
of Alfred the Great. The church, a fine spacious
structure, dedicated to St. Bartholomew, was
rebuilt in the years 1828—9, and is conjectured
to be one of the first christian churches in the
Saxon Heptarchy: it stands on a lofty and com-
manding situation, and is supposed to occupy the
site of the ancient castle. A wake or feast is held
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here on the Sunday, next to St. Bartholomew's
day, at which the barbarous practice of bull bait-
ing is still continued, notwithstanding the efforts
of many humane individuals to suppress it. The
town was of great importance during the war,
on account of the vast quantities of gun barrels,

n locks, &c., which were made in it.

DUDLEY which is about 54 miles west of the
. line, is situated south-west of “'Wednesbury, and
isa market town in the County of Worcester.
To the geologist and the antiquarian, Dudley
unquestionably Xresents the greatest treat in this
part of the kingdom. It derives its name from
Dodo, or Dudo, a Saxon prince, who built a
castle about the year 700. The town contains
two churches ; one dedicated to St. Thomas, the
other to St. Edmund; the former an elegant
gothic structure, and the latter a plain brick build-
ing; beside which there are places of worship
for almost every description of dissenters, and
various schools and charities dependent on the
church and dissenting bodies. The whole of the
town and parisheis in Worcestershire, but the
castle, which is a grand and spacious ruin, is in
the County of Stafford, and was one of the last
which surrendered to the parliamentary forces in
the civil wars. Its situation is one which com-
mands diversified, beautiful, and extensive pros-
pects in every direction, and was formerly the
seat of the ancestors of the present noble owner,
Lord Dudley and Ward. Near the castle and
adjoining the town, are the interesting remains of
a Priory of Benedictine Monks, founded by
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Gervase Pagnell, about the year 1161. Not
far from thence, are vast subterraneous lime-
stone caverns, frequently entered by wondering
strangers, more extensive than the caves of Cas-
tleton and Matlock, in Derbyshire. In these
caverns numerous fossils are found, one of which
called the “ Dudley Locust” is greatly esteemed
by the collector, and is supposed to be an extinct
species of Monoculus. In the vicinity of the
town, there are several chalybeate springs and a
valuable spa, held in much repute for its efficacy
in cutaneous disorders. A few miles from hence
are The Leasores, the far famed seat of the late
celebrated poet, Shenstone. The population of
Dudley, was, in 1831, 23,043, being an increase
since 1801, of nearly 13,000, the greater part
of whom are engaged in mining, making of nails, .
smelting iron ore, and the manufacture of flint
glass. It sends one member to the House of
Commons, under the Reform Act.
To proceed onward, the traveller will find
JAMES'S BRIDGE,
the fourth Station

. only $ of a mile from the p’em'oua one; -

and about the same distance westward of the
line, is situated the town of DARLASTON, con-
taining in the year 1831, 6,647 inhabitants.
There is a large manufactory for bar-iron, and the
articles wrought from this material, are very nu-
merous, comprising gun-locks, bits, stirrups,
buckles, nails, screws, and a variety of cast iron
articles. At Berry Bank, within the parish, are
said to be the ruins of a large castle, which ac-
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verhampton. It is, however, for all parochial

urposes independent, but it forms part of that
Eorough under the Reform Bill. Bilston, like
most of the towns in this part of the country
has greatly increased of late years. Previously to
the introduction of iron works, it contained but
few private houses ; and before the canal was cut
in 1772, only one blast furnace for smelting iron
was in operation; since that period the number
has so greatly increased, and so many forges have
been erected for the different kinds of iron, that
it has been asserted, that more iron is made in
Bilston-field, than in the whole kingdom of Swe-
den. The mines of coal and ironstone are con-
_sidered inexhaustible, many of them are wrought
.to the depth of 370 feet. The main coal is about
30 feet thick, and has below as well as above it,
valuable strata of ironstone.

A sand of a deep orange colour is obtained
here, which is used for the purpose of spaud to
_cast metal in, and is sent for from a great ({;stance.
There is in the reighbourhood a quarry of remar-
kable stones, lying horizontally one under ano-
ther, increasing in thickness from the surface;
the undermost being about three feet. Some of
this stone is manufactured into grind and whet-
stones of superior quality, and some wrought into
cisterns, millstones, &c. while the coarser beds
are employed for building purposes.

There are two places of worship belonging to
the Establishment, one Roman Catholic Chapel,
a handsome Gothic edifice, erected in 1633, and
several chapels for the different sects of Dissent-
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stone column 20 feet high, displaying a profusion of
rude sculpture work in separate compartments
supposed to be of Danish or Saxon origin. The
Free Grammar School here, was founded by Sir
Stephen Jenyns, Knight, a native of the town in
1513, under letters patent of Henry the 8th.
The pupils are instructed in French, German,
Greek, and Latin, besides Writing and Arithme-
tic: among the eminent men educated at this
School were Sir William Congreve, Bart., the
celebrated Engineer, John Abernethy, Esq. the
eccentric and talented Surgeon and John %een-
som, Esq. Advocate General of India. A public
subscription Library was established in 1794, and
& neat building was erected for the same in 1816,
to which a News Room was added. Over the
Library isa suite of Rooms in which Concerts and
Assemblies areheld. There are several Charity
and Sunday Schools, and a public Dispensary,
supported by the annual contributions of the af-
fluent and benevolent. The Mechanic’s Institu-
tion established here to dispel ignorance, and
create in the minds of the Artizans a love of science
rather than the indulgence of sense, will, it is hoped
and believed, from the manner it has been taken
up, accomplish the good all such institutions are
calculated to effect. The Theatre which is a neat
building, is only opened occasionally; but the Ra-
ces held on the Monday, Tuesday, and Wednes-
day following the 12th of August, every year,
are well attended and carried on with great spirit.
The Grand Stand is an elegant building raised by
subscription in 1827. The market i1s held on
c3
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ordered it to be destroyed ; which was effected by
springing a mine. The upper town stands on a
hill of red sand stone, out of which a great num-
ber of houses are excavated, over these the in-
habitantshavegardens; and the smokearising from
these subterraneous dwellings gives a singular and
striking aspect to this part of the town. At one
period a good iron trade was carried on here, which
has declined, and the principal business now car-
ried on is carpet making and malting, the latter
article is said to be of a very superior quality.
There are two parish Churches, and Chapels for
Baptists, Independents, and Wesleyan Methodists.
The country round is remarkable for its fertility
producing every sort of grain and vegetables in
abundance, and is distinguished by the many
seats and mansions of opulent families. This
borough had the elective franchise bestowed on it
during the reign of the first Edward, and from
that time has continued to return two members to
parliament, the right beihg confirmed by the pro-
visions of the Reform Bill. The market is held
on Saturday, and there are seven fairs ; the Octo-
ber one being very large for the sale of cattle,
butter, and cheese. The number of inhabitants
in the borough at the period of the Reform Bill
passing was, 6,545.

It is now time to return to the Station at Wol-
verhampton ; from thence proceeding onward, the
traveller will speedily enter a pleasant and highly
cu'tivated country, leaving the fires and the smoke
of the coal and iron district behind him, and after
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passing on for nearly 6 miles, he will arrive at the
seventh Station called the
FOUR ASHES.

About 2 miles to the west, is the small town of
Brewood, containing with its liberties 5799 inhab-
itants in the year 1831. One mile further on, he
will arrive at the next Station called the

SPREAD EAGLE,
and from thence to
PENKRIDGE,

which is distant only 3 miles. This is a small
market town situate on the river Penk, from which
its name is evidently derived: Camden supposes
it to be the Roman Pennocuicum of .4nlonius.
The parish Church a royal peculia, formerly
Collegiate, is a fine Gothic structure dedicated to
St. Michael, anciently called the ‘CHAPEL oOF
Pexcriz’. The country around is flat and sub-
ject to occasional inundations, but the land is rich
and proper for grazing, with good cornland. The
beautiful seat of Lord Hatherton is in the neigh-
bourhood of the line. Five miles to the East is
the ancient and respectable village of Cannock,
which is bounded on the north and east by a very
extensive heath, once a forest, called Cannock,
Chase, which is 10 or 12 miles in length, and 5 or
6 in breadth, containing many herds of wild deer.

A few miles south east of the chase, and 17
east of the Railroad, is the City of LICHFIELD,
an ancient and interesting place, highly salubrious,
and the ground around particularly fertile, con-
taining, according to the returns of 1831, a pop-
ulation 0f6499. Great difference of opinion exists

{



27

as to the origin of its name, but, whatever that
might have been, it appears to have derived its
first importance from the Merciankings. Itstands
in a fine valley, on a small river that runs into the
Trent within two miles of the Roman Etocetum.
" 'The streets are in general paved and lighted, and
the city is amply supplied with water, and has an
air of great cleanliness and respectability. The
Cathedral, which is supposed to have been found-
_ed about the year 657, is one of the noblest reli-
gious edifices in the kingdom. It is adorned with
richly painted windows, and a number of interest-
ing monuments are dispersed through the building;
among the principal is one to Lancelot Addison,
the father of the celebrated Joseph, .one to David
Garrick, one to Dr. Samuel Johnson, another to
Anna Seward with lines by Sir Walter Scott ; these
were all natives of Lichfield : but the monument
ossessing the most exquisite beauty, is that by
hantry, to the memory of two infant children,
grand-daughters of Dean Woodhouse—so graceful,
natural, and easy, as to be models of the greatest
genius, and most refined taste.. The Cathedral
suffered much from the republican army during
. the civil wars. There are two horse races held
here, taking place respectively in March and
September. The Theatre, which is small, is open-
ed during these times, and occasionally at others ;
it was at this, that Mrs. Siddons made her first
appearance after her marriage. The charitable
ans scholastic institutions are here both numerous
- and valuable; the limits of this work will not
allow us to do more, than thus direct attention to
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coal mines at Brereton, one mile distant ; and the
beautiful seat of Beaudesert is 4 miles hence on
the Lichfield road ; at the last census, it contained
3165 inhabitants.

UTTOXETER, is in the county of Stafford 14
miles east of the line, and the same distance north
east by east of thetown of Stafford; itis another
small market town, and contained in the year1831,
4864 inhabitants. It is situated on the western
bank of the river Dove, across which is a stone
bridge of 6 arches, connecting this county with
that of Derby. The town is one of great antiqui-
ty, and has suffvred severely at several times by
fire. The land in the neighbourhood is esteem-
ed some of the most fertile and luxuriant in Eng-
land. Thete is a Church, several Meeting Houses
for Dissenters, and a Free School.

NEWPORT, 12 miles from the line, is a small
market town, situate in the county of Salop on
the borders ef Staffordshire, on a plain near the
Roman Watling street. It is 19 miles east north
east from Shrewsbury. A branch ofthe Liverpool
and Birmingham Grand Junction Canal passes
through the town. It consists principally of one
main street, in the centre of which stands the
parish church, dedicated to St. Nicholas. The
edifice is in the ancient style of English architec-
ture with a square tower. There is also a Chapel
each for Wesleyan Methodists, Independents, and
Roman Catholics. There are Alms Houses and
Free, Schools in the town, founded and endowed
by natives of the place. No trade or manufac-
tures are attached to the town, but there are corn
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scriptive affix ¢ under Liyme’ was added on account
of its proximity to the forest of Lyme, and to dis-
tinguishit from the Newcastle in Northumberland,
The town consists of two principal and several. .
smaller streets which are lighted with gas. The
principal manufactures are hats, and silk throwing.
The good or bad state of trade of the Potteries
adjacent, exercises, to a certain degree an influence
on its welfare and prosperity. It has sent two
members to parliament ever since the 7th of
Edward III: the Reform Act confirmed this
privilege and somewhat extended the suffrage.
The places for divine worship are the parish
Church and a Chapel of Ease, others for Unita-
rians, Calvinists, Methodists, and Roman Cath-
olics. The principle charities are, the Free Gram-
mar School in which the Latin and Greek langua-
ges are taught, and another for teaching to the
sons of burgesses and those of the poor inhabi-
tants; Alms houses for 20 poor widows. A court
of record is held here every 3 weeks, for the re-
covery of debts not exceeding £50. Newcastle
was formerley noted for using the bridle for
scolds, and the instrument of correction was till
within these few years, and perhaps is now, in the
custody of the Mayor of the town. Markets are
held on Monday and Saturday. The population
of 1831 was 8192, being nearly double what it
was in 1801.

The POTTERIES, an opulent and highly in-
teresting district, about 7 miles to the east of the
line, comprises within its range the borough of
Stroxe vroN TRENT, and the several townships
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BETLEY, a particularly pleasant village, situ-
ate 3 miles on the east o ,tﬁe road, in the same
division and hundred as Madeley, contains many
respectable houses, and is 7 miles north west of
Newcastle, which town it supplies with vegetables .
from extensive and well cultivated gardens in the
neighbourhood, and for which the soil around
appears to be well adapted.

MOORE, mentioned -on the list of the Com-
pany as being 23 miles westward of the line, is a
small village, situated on the north east point of
the County of Salop. The country around is
highly picturesque and beautiful.

%.,EEK, an ancient market town, at one
time written Leyke, is situated nearly at the
northern extremity of the County of Stafford,
and 16 miles from the Railway, in a mountainous
district called the Moorlands, of which it has
sometimes been styled the Capital. The Churnet,
a branch of the Trent, runs near this town. It
is 32 miles from Manchester, 24 from Stafford,
12 from Newecastle, and 154 from London. Itis
remarkable for the singular phenomenon of a
double sunset, which occurs at a certain part of
the year, owing to the position of a rocky moun-
tain, westward of the town. The hills in the
neighbourhood called the Blue Hills, abound
with coal mines, and a salt spring issues from
one of them. The principal manufactures of the
place are various articles of silk, consisting of
ferrets, galloons, twist, thrown silk, handkerchiefs,
ribbons, and fancy buttons. The church, dedi-
cated to St. Edward the Confessor, is situated on
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an ‘eminence commanding a most extensive
prospect. Inthe Cemetery are the remains of
a pyramidal cross, supposed to be of Danish
origin. There are besides, several Meeting ITouses
for the different dissenting bodies, and a Roman
Catholic Chapel. In the year 1745 the Pretend-
er marched through the town, when he was ad-
vancing on Derby. There is a Free Grammar
School with a small endowment; a lot of Alins
Houses, and several other charitable benefactions.
The market day is Wednesday, and the population
of the entire of the parish, was from the last re-
turns, 10,087.
" The traveller on leaving Madeley, will in a few
minutes enter the County palatine of Chester, and
at a distance of 8 miles from the former, will ar-
rive at CREWE BRIDGE, or
- CREWE STATION,
near which is Crewe Hall, the beautiful seat of
Lord Crewe. Four miles westward of the line,
and a little south west of the Crewe Station, is the
town of Nantwich, which is situate in a luxuriant
vale on the banks of the river Weaver, which is
not navigable here, but it has water conveyance
!'F canal to the different parts of the kingdom.
he manufacture of Salt was at one time carried
on very extensively, but it has now greatlydeclined.
The streets of the town are pretty regularly ar-
ranged, and there are many good houses. The
Church is an ancient gothic pile in the form of a-
cross, with an octagonal tower rising from the
- centre. In the inside are several monuments de-
serving the notice of the curious: it %ms too, a
D
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the rapid increase of trade and manufactures the
town has proportionably increased, and in many
streets are some very excellent houses. The
principal trade of the place consisted chiefly of
wrought buttons of silk, mohair, and twist, of
which trade this town has always been the centre;
but these have latterly been superseded by the
manufacture of silk in its various textures, and
this beautiful and important branch of manufac-
ture isnow carried on here to an immense extent.
The neighbourhood of the town abounds with coal.
and other minerals, but the general face of the.
country around it, is agricultural and highly pic-
turesque. 'The Free Grammar School established
and endowed by Edward the VI. to the amount of
£25. now produces nearly £1000. Besides the
Churches, which are two in number, there are
Chapels for Roman Catholics and the different
denominations of Dissenters. The population, in-
cluding Sutton and Hurdsfield, which virtually
form parts of the town, according to the last
census was 32,068, and the market days are Tues-
day and Saturday.

We will now proceed onwards from Crewe to

the
COPPENHALL STATION,

whick is distant only 2 miles,
and as little need be said on this, farther than that
the country around is pleasing and beautiful, we
pass on to the next Station,

MINSHULL VERNON,

which is only 23 miles distant

from Coppenhall, and from thence passing the
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different sects of Methodists, and a Roman:
Catholic Chapel. One of the towers of the
Castle is ascribed to Julius Ceesar, and on
the grounds of the same are a Hall, in which
the palatine Courts and Sessions are held, a
Prison for the County, Barracks, and an Ar-
moury for 30,000 men. During the Civil Wars
this City declared for the royal cause, and was
invested by the troops of the parliament, but after
a siege of 20 weeks’ duration, when every hope of
relief had failed, it was compelled to surrender.
The governor of the garrison was Lery Byron, the
ancestor of the distinguished and lamented poet,
who died struggling in an opposite cause.

There is an fnﬁrmary here, founded in 1760,
having a funded property of £20,000. and other-
wise supported by voluntary contributions. A.
Blue Coat Hospital, subscription News Room,
Exchange, two Libraries, and a Theatre. The
last named has widely departed from its original
purpose, the site of 1t having been intended for a
Chapel, by the monks of the Monastery of St.
Wer]i;ur h. The Halls, viz. the Union, Commer-
cial, and the Linen, are well attended during the
great Fairs, which are held in this City twice a
year. In the first week in May, Horse Races are
annually held in a beautiful meadow called the
Rooddee: a situation on the City walls commands
an entire view. The City sends two members to
the House of Commons; has two market days,
Wednesday and Saturday, and agreeably to the
population returns, contained in 1831, 21,263
inhabitants, '






48

neighbourhood, who arenumerous. The annual
Races held in July, contribute also to the
emolument as well as the amusement of the
inhabitants., Its market is Saturday, and the
population in 1831 was 4097.

On leaving Hartford a few minutes more will
bring us on to the

ACTON STATION, .
and as we have nothing particular to offer re-
specting this place, we proceed onwards to Preston
Brook, passing however on the road the stupen-
dous and magnificient viaduct at Dutton, the
arches of which are of immense span, but the
passenger in the train, is not favourably situatéd
for seeing this wonderful undertaking to advan-
tage, and is only sensible of it by finding himself
as it were, suspended in the air. Having passed
this, he will speedily arrive at
PRESTON BROOK STATION,

or Preston on the Hill, which is a small town-
ship in the parish of Runcorn, from which it is
about 2 miles distant, and consists for the greater
part, of a long range of warehouses, where the
business relative to the trans-shipment of goods
between the Mersey navigation, the Grand Tradk
and the Duke of Bridgewater’s canal, is carried on.
The population at the last census was 461. About
4 miles west of this place and only about 3
from the nearest part of the line, is situated the
small market town of FRODSHAM, near the
conflux of the #eaver and the Mersey. It con-
sists principally of two streets intersecting each.
other, at the extremity of one of which, in the
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the interior and yard of this interesting Church.
Besides the Church, are places of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists, and Lady Huntingdon’s
Connexion. After the reign of William the Con-
queror, Runcorn retrograded in importance, so
much that till the time just previous to the
completion of the Duke of Bridgewater’s canal, it
was only an insignificant village; but since that
period it has become a thriving, genteel town,
and of some importance in its commercial trans-
actions; as a proof of which, the government
has proclaimed it a free port, and established a
Custom-house there. Its pleasant neighbourhood,
fine views, and pure air, have lately rendered it a
place of great resort for sea bathing. Runcorn
does not rank high in its manufactures; it has,
however, a large soap making establishment, and
an extensive turpentine distillery ; many school
slates are also made here, and sent to most parts
of the kingdom. Its market day is Friday. The
population of the whole of the parish of Runcorn,
was in 1821, 7,738, and in 1831, 10,326,

About 12 miles eastward of the Moore Station,
is situated the particularly neat and clean market
town of ALTRINCHAM,or Altringham, which
is 183 miles from London, 30 from Chester, 9 from
Stockport, and 8 from Manchester. There are
geveral manufactories of thread, woollen yarn,
bobbin turning, &c. as well as power loom; but
the chief employment of the labouring classes, is
agriculture, attending to the cultivation of their
gardens, which are, for the most part, kept in a
Ligh state of perfection, and the produce transfer-
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dedicated to St. Elfin; but whether the Saint got
out of odour, or the fickleness of the peopledesired
a change,cannot now be known; certaiu it is, that
at a subsequent period, when it underwent some
repairs and alterations, thededication was changed,
and St. Helen’s now stands on the same site
which formerly supported St. Elfin. There are
some very ancient monuments to be seen in this
Church, particularly one with the figures of Sir
Thomas Boteler and his Lady, and others of the’
Massey’s and Palter families. The other build-
ings dedicated to divine'worship, are, a Chapel of
Ease, Trinity, belonging to the Establishment,
and Mecting-houses for Unitarians, Independents,
Baptists, Methodists, Lady Huntingdon’s; the .
Society of Friends, and a Catholic Chapel. The
number of children receiving instruction on a
Sunday from these different religious bodies, is
somewhat more than 3000. Many other valuable
charities exist here, for the benefit of the
rising generation : Boteler's Free School, founded
in 1526 and richly endowed; the Blue Coat
School in Winwick-street, established about 1677.
In the same strect stands a Female Charity
School established in 1814, besides which there is
an Infant School established in 1826. After the
youth of the town are conducted through the pe-
riod of infancy and mere boyhood, obtaining the
necessary early preliminary initiation, they may be
taken by the hand and receive the benefits of the
Mechanic’s Institution, where by learning some-
thing of science, they learn better to understand
and properly estimate themselves. The public
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ofhands: files for the use of the mechanic, of supe-
rior quality, and much esteemed in all parts of the
country, are also made in this town, besides
which there are Glass Works, Tanneries, and a
Pin making establishment. Let not the stranger,
however, from all that has been said expect to see
a fine and splendid town; for though it is by no
means an inferior looking place, yet it is certainly
not remarkable for the handsome appearance,
generally, of the houses of its inhabitants, and
some of the streets are particularly narrow con,-
sidering it is a place of so much traffic. The
market days are Wednesday and Saturday, the
former the principal one. There are also two
chartered fairs in the year, each lasting ten days.
The population, from the government returns of
1831, was 19,155.

From Warrington the traveller will proceed till
he arrives at that point of the Manchester and
Liverpool line, called the ‘

WARRINGTON STATION,
when turning short round to the right he will
presently reach the

STATION or TaHe NEWTON JUNCTION,

OR NEWTON BRIDGE,
a distance of 43 miles,
and thence continue onwards to Manchester, first
however, we will giveaconcise history of this small
and now extinct borough, extinct so far as itsprivi-
lege of returning members to the British Senate is
concerned. It is a chapelry situate in the parish
of Winwick in the hundred of west Derby, nearly
5 miles north of Warrington. It is a borough by
























































































































SWAN HOTEL
COACH OFFICE,

BIRMINGHAM.

THOMAS WADDELL

Informs the Travelling Public, that he dispatches TweLvz
Royal Mails and Fast Post Coaches to Lownpow, daily.
Also, Fast Four-horse Coaches to Bristol, Bath, Chelten-
ham, Gloucester, Worcester, &¢c. the whole of which are | |
arranged conveniently for persons arriving by the Railway
Trains,

By Permission of the Directors of the Grand Junction
Railway Company, particulars may be obtained and places
secured, on application to Mr. W.’s Clerk, at his Offices,
Railway Stations, Liverpool or Manchester, or by a letter
addressed to Mr. WappgLL, Birmingham,

BIRMINGHAM MUSEUM
OF NATURAL HISTORY,

TEMPLE ROW,

Patronized by the Royal Family, the Nobility and Gentry,
and the principal Natural History Societiesin the Kingdom,

I Admiflance to Non-Subscribers, 1s. each.
%
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Castle Potel,
HIGH-STREET, BIRMINGHAM.

" A. F. CHAPMAN

Begs leave with. gratitude to thank her Friiends
and the Public, for their kind patronage, and to
inform them she has made many improvements
in the Hotel, for their comfort and convenience.

She continues to be supplied with the choicest
WINES and SPIRITS, of the very best quality.

Strangers will find that the greatest atten-
tion i8 paid to them.
AN ORDINARY EVERY DAY,
: AND
DINNERS COOKED ON THE SHORTEST NOTICE.

Chaigeg and Cars,

WITH GOOD HORSES AND CAREFUL DRIVERS,

LExcellent Stables and Lock-up Coach Houses.
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BIRMINGHAM
COFFEE HOUSE,
Nos. 1 & 2, CURZON PLACE,
Wnisn Passage.

Persons visiting Birmingham either on Busingss or
Preasure. will find Curzon Place one of the most ReTirep
and CoNvENIFNT situations in the town, being within a few
minutes’ walk of the principal Streets, Public Buildings,
and Ipstitutions, &c. &c.

DINNER COMMENCING AT ONE O'CLOCK

_ A libersl Bill of Fare is daily produced, and ample
preparations are made, consisting of the most choicearticles
which the well supplied markets of Birmingham produce,

Well aired Beds, Private Rooms, and Privat¢ Dinners, on
the shortest notice. Charges moderate.

-

Cregcent Echool, Wirmingham,

CONDUCTED BT'

MR. H. HOPKINS.

Mr. H. receives a few Boarders, (whoare treated in every
respect as members of the family,) at his residence, Lower
Terrace, Sandpits, very near to the School Rooms.

For Terms apply to Mr. Cornish, Lord-street, Liverpool,
or to Mr, Johnson, Druggist, New-street, Birmingham,
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JOHN RODGERS AND SONS,

MANUFACTURERS OF

GIRTH, ROLLER, BELT, & BRACE WEBS,

b Kubber Wlebs,
" Axp svEsY pEsomTION oF
BRACES, BELTS, GIRTHS,
SM.K P@R&E@, &G,
ADAPTED FOR THE SHIPPING &' COUNTRY TRADE,
BROAD-STREET, BIRMINGHAM,
AND |

CHISWELL-STREET, LONDON.

A x
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* : *
. LONDON, BIRMINGHAM, & NORTHAMPTON

BOOT & SHOE MART,

94, BULL-STREET,
BIRMINGHAM,

M. A. AND C. MANSELL

Respectfully solicit the attention of the Nobility, Gentry,
and Public in general, to their extensive Stock ; consisting
of a great choice; both modern and useful; of a superior
style and workmanship, and of such.variety as are not
generally kept for sale by any other house.

M. A. and C. M. particularly recommend to those Ladies
and Gentlemen who have tender feet, Chamois, Doe, and
Buck-skin Leather Boots and Shoes; also the French
Varnished Leather, always preserving a brilliant polish, and
impervious to wet.

TRAVELLING BOOTS, OVER SHORS, DRESSING SLIPPERS, CLOGS, &C.

Blacking, giving a Lustre without the aid of a Brush,

FOR READY MONERY ONLY,

94, BULL-STREET, BIRMINGHAM.

H. AND J. GIBBS,
Platerg on Steel and German Silber,

MANUFACTURERS OF
METAL & JAPANNED BUTTONS,

Cloak Clasps, Split Rings, Stay Holes, Fancy Gilt and
Steel Toys, &e. §e. &e.

7, LITTLE CHARLES-STREET,
i BIRMINGHAM.
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GENTLEMEN’'S DRESS.

Every Article of GENTLEMEN’S DRESS
Cut to Iit, in the first style of elegance, and made
of the very best Materials, at

W. STRIPE’S,
Tatlor an® Braper,

No. 31, NORTH SIDE, LORD-STREET,

LIVERPOOL,

‘Whose Stock of everything New for the present
Season, affords ample means for Selection.

Superfine Claret, Olive Brown, Dahlia,£. 5. d. £. s d,

or Invisible Green Dress Coats ,,.,2 10 0t02 18 0
Ditto, BlueorBl&ck.....'.........-.2 15 9—3 5 0
A middle quality .v..iiiiiiieieena2 0 0—2 5 ¢
Frock Coat, faced with Silk and Velvet2 10 0 &upwards
A great variety of Articles for Trowsers0 10 0tol 8 ¢
A splendid Assortment in Waistcoatings0 7 0 & upwards

CLOTHING, suited to all Climates, kept ready- .
also, HOSE, DRAWKRS, SINGLETS? Cona) pode;
and Fancy SHIRTS, STOCKS, HANDKERCHIEFS
and every Article for an Outfit. ' !

—~ePocm
Agent for Cornish and Co.’s Patent Indi
gent ¢ Rubber Web, .~ et India

OBSERVE.—No. 31, (north side) LORD-STREET.
®

FINIS.
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